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UNITED STATES  
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  

Washington, D.C. 20549  
____________________________________________   

FORM 10-Q  
____________________________________________   

(Mark One)  

 
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2014  

or  
   

For the transition period from              to               

Commission File Number: 001-33140    

____________________________________________  

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)  

____________________________________________  
   

 
(888) 227-3552  

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)  
____________________________________________   

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during 
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for 
the past 90 days.    Yes        No   �  

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to 
be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the 
registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes       No   �  

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See 
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.  
   

 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes   �     No     

The total number of shares of common stock outs tanding as of July 24, 2014 was 12,254,016 .  

  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES AND 
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
 
Item 1. Financial Statements  
 

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Balance Sheets  
(In thousands, except par value)  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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   As of June 30, 2014    As of December 31, 2013  

   (Unaudited)       
ASSETS          

Current assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 88,455    $ 124,097  
Marketable securities, current  35,528    18,342  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $5,711 at June 30, 2014 and $7,091 at 

December 31, 2013  14,617    16,919  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  10,050    10,548  
Deferred income taxes  2,892    2,846  

Total current assets  151,542    172,752  
Marketable securities, non-current  34,881    17,740  
Property and equipment, net  39,249    39,993  
Goodwill  17,089    16,969  
Intangibles, net  2,239    2,795  
Other assets  1,063    — 
Total assets  $ 246,063    $ 250,249  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY          

Current liabilities:          

Accounts payable  $ 6,890    $ 7,939  
Accrued liabilities  28,048    33,164  
Dividends payable  4,353    4,346  
Deferred revenue  10,627    10,736  

Total current liabilities  49,918    56,185  
Deferred rent  2,716    3,221  
Other liabilities  2,974    2,541  
Deferred income taxes  5,729    6,283  
Total liabilities  61,337    68,230  
        

Shareholders’ equity:          

Common stock, $0.01 par value: Authorized shares — 100,000; Issued and 
Outstanding shares — 12,278 at June 30, 2014 and 12,361 at December 31, 
2013  123    124  

Additional paid-in capital  107,134    104,546  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (601 )   (114 ) 

Retained earnings  78,070    77,463  
Total shareholders’ equity  184,726    182,019  
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  $ 246,063    $ 250,249  
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Statements of Income  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

   

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

   (Unaudited)  

Revenues  $ 104,832    $ 103,693    $ 210,428    $ 208,935  
Costs and expenses:                    

Instructional costs and services  45,530    44,900    92,830    91,867  
Marketing and promotional  23,113    24,101    48,874    49,602  
Admissions advisory  7,146   6,727    14,073    13,498  
General and administrative  10,889    10,500    21,354    21,328  
Lease amendment charges  2,690    —   2,690    — 

Total costs and expenses  89,368    86,228    179,821    176,295  
Operating income  15,464    17,465    30,607    32,640  
Other expense, net  (171 )   (25 )   (513 )   (225 ) 

Income before income taxes  15,293    17,440    30,094    32,415  
Income tax expense  6,249    7,018    12,233    13,238  
Net income  $ 9,044    $ 10,422    $ 17,861    $ 19,177  
Net income per common share:                    

Basic  $ 0.74    $ 0.84    $ 1.45    $ 1.55  
Diluted  $ 0.72    $ 0.83    $ 1.42    $ 1.54  

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:                    

Basic  12,293    12,394    12,317    12,394  
Diluted  12,518    12,498    12,564    12,489  

Cash dividends declared per common share  $ 0.35    $ —   $ 0.70    $ — 
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income  
(In thousands)  

   

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

   (Unaudited)  

Net income  $ 9,044    $ 10,422    $ 17,861    $ 19,177  
Other comprehensive income (loss):                    

Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  (228 )   77    (504 )   188  
Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale 
securities, net of tax  44    (24 )   17    (21 ) 

Comprehensive income  $ 8,860    $ 10,475    $ 17,374    $ 19,344  
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
(In thousands)  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  

 

   Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013  

   (Unaudited)  

Operating activities          

Net income  $ 17,861    $ 19,177  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:          

Provision for bad debts  6,900    7,060  
Depreciation and amortization  12,056    13,596  
Amortization of investment discount/premium  817    308  
Impairment of property and equipment  277    229  
Loss on disposal of property and equipment  70    39  
Share-based compensation  2,758    2,606  
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  (392 )   (66 ) 

Deferred income taxes  (574 )   (43 ) 

Payment of contingent consideration  (906 )   — 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:          

Accounts receivable  (4,550 )   (6,044 ) 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets  (235 )   820  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (60 )   6,189  
Income taxes payable  605    (1,486 ) 

Deferred rent  (505 )   (713 ) 

Deferred revenue  (273 )   (116 ) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  33,849    41,556  
Investing activities          

Capital expenditures  (10,814 )   (10,310 ) 

Investment in partnership interest  (1,063 )   — 
Purchases of marketable securities  (42,093 )   (22,426 ) 

Maturities of marketable securities  6,975    7,135  
Net cash used in investing activities  (46,995 )   (25,601 ) 

Financing activities          

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  392    66  
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options  1,638    524  
Payment of dividends  (8,659 )   — 
Repurchases of common stock  (9,926 )   (2,137 ) 

Payment of contingent consideration  (5,945 )   — 
Net cash used in financing activities  (22,500 )  (1,547 ) 

Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash  4    (47 ) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (35,642 )   14,361  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  124,097    93,220  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 88,455    $ 107,581  
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information          

Income taxes paid  $ 12,539    $ 14,770  
Noncash transactions:          

Purchase of equipment included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 1,988    $ 207  
Declaration of cash dividend to be paid  $ 4,354    $ — 
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
(Unaudited)  

 
1. Nature of Business  
 
Capella Education Company (the Company) was incorporated on December 27, 1991, and is the parent company of its wholly owned 
subsidiaries, Capella University (the University), Resource Development International Limited (RDI), Sophia Learning, LLC (Sophia), and 
Capella Learning Solutions (CLS). The University, founded in 1993, is an online postsecondary education services company offering a variety 
of bachelor's, master's and doctoral degree programs primarily delivered to working adults. The University is accredited by The Higher 
Learning Commission and is a member of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools. In 2011, the Company acquired RDI, which 
is an independent provider of United Kingdom (UK) university distance learning qualifications and markets, develops and delivers programs 
worldwide via its offices and partners across Asia, North America, Africa and Europe. Sophia provides a social teaching and learning platform 
that integrates education with technology. On April 16, 2012 , the Company acquired the remaining interest in Sophia which is now a wholly 
owned subsidiary as of that date. CLS is a subsidiary created in 2013 that provides online training solutions and services to corporate partners 
which are delivered through Capella's online learning platform. With the Company's focus on academic quality in an online delivery format, it 
has one reporting segment.  
 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the University, CLS, RDI and its subsidiaries, and Sophia, after 
elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. RDI operates on a fiscal year ending October 31, which is also the date used for 
consolidation.  
 
Unaudited Interim Financial Information  

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of 
Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In 
the opinion of management, these statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary to 
present a fair statement of the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows. Operating results for any interim 
period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year. Preparation of the Company’s financial statements in 
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements 
and footnotes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in its Annual Report on Form  
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 ( 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K).  
 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the accrued liabilities table as of December 31, 2013 in Note 7 to align with current reporting 
methods.  
 
Refer to the Company’s “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” footnote included within the 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a 
complete summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies.  
 
3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements  
   
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers, which is included in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers . This 
ASU is a comprehensive new revenue recognition model that creates a single source of revenue guidance for all companies in all industries. 
The model is more principles-based than current guidance, and is primarily based on recognizing revenue at an amount that reflects 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The guidance will be 
effective for the Company's interim and annual reporting periods beginning January 1, 2017. The standard allows the Company to transition to 
the new model using either a full or modified retrospective approach, and early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating 
the impact this standard will have on its business practices, financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures.  
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, 
which is included in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 220, Comprehensive Income . This update improves the reporting of 
reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The guidance was effective for the Company's interim and annual reporting 
periods beginning January 1, 2013, and applied prospectively. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's 
financial condition, results of operations, or disclosures.  
 
In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, Foreign Currency Matters . This update addresses diversity in practice regarding the 
release of the cumulative translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its investments in a foreign entity. In 
addition, the standard addresses diversity in practice for the treatment of business combinations achieved in stages involving a foreign entity. 
The guidance was effective for the Company's interim and annual reporting periods beginning January 1, 2014, and applied prospectively. The 
adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's financial condition, results of operations, or disclosures.  
 
The Company has reviewed and considered all other recent accounting pronouncements and believes there are none that could potentially have 
a material impact on its financial condition, results of operations, or disclosures.  
 
4. Net Income per Common Share  
 
Basic net income per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. 
Dilutive shares are computed using the Treasury Stock method and include the incremental effect of shares that would be issued upon the 
assumed exercise of stock options, settlement of restricted stock, and satisfaction of service conditions for market stock units.  

The following table presents a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator in the basic and diluted net income per common share 
calculation, in thousands, except per share data:    

 
Options to purchase common shares were outstanding, but not included in the computation of diluted net income per common share, because 
their effect would be anti-dilutive. The following table summarizes these securities, in thousands:  
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   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

Numerator:                    

Net income  $ 9,044    $ 10,422    $ 17,861    $ 19,177  
Denominator:                    

Denominator for basic net income per common share— 
weighted average shares outstanding  12,293    12,394    12,317    12,394  

Effect of dilutive stock options, restricted stock, and 
market stock units  225    104    247    95  

Denominator for diluted net income per common share— 
weighted average shares outstanding  12,518    12,498    12,564    12,489  

Basic net income per common share  $ 0.74    $ 0.84    $ 1.45    $ 1.55  
Diluted net income per common share  $ 0.72    $ 0.83    $ 1.42    $ 1.54  

   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

Anti-dilutive securities excluded from diluted earnings per 
share calculation  239    718    204    692  
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5. Marketable Securities  
 
The following is a summary of available-for-sale securities, in thousands:    

 
The unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s investments in municipal and corporate debt securities as of June 30, 2014 and 
December 31, 2013 were caused by changes in market values primarily due to interest rate changes. All of the Company's securities in an 
unrealized loss position as of June 30, 2014 had been in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months. The Company intends to hold 
these securities until maturity and the possibility that the Company will be required to sell these securities prior to the recovery of their 
amortized cost basis is remote. No other-than-temporary impairment charges were recorded during the three and six months ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013 .  

The following table summarizes the remaining contractual maturities of the Company’s marketable securities, in thousands:    

 
The following table summarizes the proceeds from the maturities of available-for-sale securities, in thousands:    

 
The Company did not record any gross realized gains or gross realized losses in net income during the three and six months ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013 . Additionally, there were no proceeds from sales of marketable securities prior to maturity during the three and six months 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 .  
 
6 . Fair Value Measurements  
 
The following tables summarize certain information for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, in thousands:    
 

9  

   As of June 30, 2014  

   Amortized Cost    
Gross Unrealized  

Gains    
Gross Unrealized 

(Losses)    Estimated Fair Value  

Tax-exempt municipal securities  $ 60,853    $ 70    $ (6 )   $ 60,917  
Corporate debt securities  9,485    7    —   9,492  

Total  $ 70,338    $ 77    $ (6 )   $ 70,409  

                

   As of December 31, 2013  

   Amortized Cost    
Gross Unrealized  

Gains    
Gross Unrealized 

(Losses)    Estimated Fair Value  

Tax-exempt municipal securities  $ 30,422    $ 46    $ —   $ 30,468  
Corporate debt securities  5,615    3    (4 )   $ 5,614  

Total  $ 36,037    $ 49    $ (4 )   $ 36,082  

   As of June 30, 2014    As of December 31, 2013  

Due within one year  $ 35,528    $ 18,342  
Due after one year through five years  34,881    17,740  

Total  $ 70,409    $ 36,082  

   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

Maturities of marketable securities  $ 4,175    $ 750    $ 6,975    $ 7,135  
Total  $ 4,175    $ 750    $ 6,975    $ 7,135  
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The Company measures cash and cash equivalents at fair value primarily using real-time quotes for transactions in active exchange markets 
involving identical assets. The Company’s marketable securities are classified within Level 2 and are valued using readily available pricing 
sources for comparable instruments utilizing market observable inputs. The Company does not hold securities in inactive markets. The 
Company did not have any transfers of assets between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value measurement hierarchy during the three and six 
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 .  
 
The Company did not have any liabilities requiring fair value measurement as of June 30, 2014 .  
 
Level 3 Measurements  
 
RDI Contingent Consideration  
 
In connection with the acquisition of RDI, the Company was required to make an additional payment to the former shareholders of RDI when 
RDI was awarded Taught Degree Awarding Powers (TDAP) by the British government. Refer to Note 12 of the Company's 2013 Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for additional details regarding the acquisition of RDI.  
 
On April 14, 2014 , RDI received notice from the British government that it had successfully been awarded TDAP. TDAP will enable RDI to 
independently validate its own degrees going forward under the auspices of the Quality Assurance Agency, a government body that reviews the 
standards and quality of all UK universities. Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition  
 

     Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2014 Using  

Description    Fair Value    

Quoted Prices in  
Active Markets  

for Identical  
Assets  

(Level 1)    

Significant Other  
Observable Inputs  

(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable  

Inputs  
(Level 3)  

Assets:                      

Cash and cash equivalents:                      

Cash    $ 56,668    $ 56,668    $ —   $ — 
Money market funds    28,907    28,907    —   — 
Variable rate demand notes    2,880    2,880    —   — 

Marketable securities:                      

Tax-exempt municipal securities    60,917    —   60,917    — 
Corporate debt securities    9,492    —   9,492    — 

Total assets at fair value on a recurring basis:    $ 158,864    $ 88,455    $ 70,409    $ — 

     Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2013 Using  

Description    Fair Value    

Quoted Prices in  
Active Markets  

for Identical  
Assets  

(Level 1)    

Significant Other  
Observable Inputs  

(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable  

Inputs  
(Level 3)  

Assets:                      

Cash and cash equivalents:                      

Cash    $ 47,796    $ 47,796    $ —   $ — 
Money market funds    57,066    57,066    —   — 
Variable rate demand notes    19,235    19,235    —   — 

Marketable securities:                      

Tax-exempt municipal securities    30,468    —   30,468    — 
Corporate debt securities    $ 5,614    —   5,614    — 

Total assets at fair value on a recurring basis:    $ 160,179    $ 124,097    $ 36,082    $ — 

                  

Liabilities:                      

Accrued liabilities:                      

RDI contingent consideration    $ 6,304    $ —   $ —   $ 6,304  
Total liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis:    $ 6,304    $ —   $ —   $ 6,304  
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agreement in 2011, the Company made an additional payment of £4.0 million (approximately $6.9 million ) to the former shareholders of RDI 
on May 12, 2014 .  
 
Prior to payment, the contingent consideration was classified as a liability under ASC 805 Business Combinations (ASC 805), which required 
the Company to re-measure the liability at fair value at each reporting date until it was extinguished. The Company classified the RDI 
contingent consideration liability within Level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy as its fair value was determined using inputs not 
readily observable in the market.  
 
The following table presents a reconciliation of the fair value of the RDI contingent consideration, in thousands:  

 
The change in the fair value of the RDI contingent consideration liability was recorded in other expense, net in the consolidated statements of 
income during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 . The fair value of the RDI contingent consideration liability was 
recorded as accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2013 .  
 
The cash payment made to settle the RDI contingent consideration liability is recorded as cash used in operating activities and cash used in 
financing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows during the six months ended June 30, 2014 . The portion of the payment 
recorded as cash used in operating activities represents the accumulated change in fair value of the contingent consideration liability between 
the acquisition date of July 15, 2011 and the payment date of May 12, 2014, and the portion of the payment recorded as financing activities 
represents the initial fair value of the liability recorded at the July 15, 2011 acquisition date.  
 
7. Accrued Liabilities  
 
Accrued liabilities consist of the following, in thousands:    

   
On April 3, 2014 , the Company accepted notice to activate an amendment to its lease with Minneapolis 225 Holdings, LLC, and also 
consolidated certain of its other leased office space during the three months ended June 30, 2014 . Refer to Note 8 for details of these 
arrangements. The lease amendment liability of $2.9 million represents the future contractual operating lease obligations associated with these 
arrangements, and is classified as accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2014 .  
 
8. Commitments and Contingencies  
 
Operating Leases  

The Company leases its office facilities and certain office equipment under various noncancelable operating leases. Effective August 29, 2011 , 
the Company entered into an amendment of its lease with Minneapolis 225 Holdings, LLC pursuant to which the Company renewed and 
extended its existing lease for premises at 225 South Sixth Street in Minneapolis, Minnesota through October 31, 2018 . Renewal terms under 
this lease allow the Company to extend the lease for up to two additional five -year terms.  
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 Three Months Ended June 30,   Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

Balance, beginning of period  $ 6,629   $ 6,306   $ 6,304   $ 6,252  
Increase (decrease) in RDI contingent consideration liability  222   (120 )  547   (66 ) 

Payment of RDI contingent consideration liability  (6,851 )   —   (6,851 )   — 

Balance, end of period  $ —  $ 6,186   $ —  $ 6,186  

   As of June 30, 2014    As of December 31, 2013  

Accrued compensation and benefits  $ 9,113    $ 10,333  
Accrued instructional  5,166    5,043  
Accrued vacation  1,974    1,040  
Accrued invoices  6,206    7,240  
RDI contingent consideration  —   6,304  
Lease amendment  2,885    — 
Other  2,704    3,204  

Total  $ 28,048    $ 33,164  
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On April 3, 2014 , the Company accepted notice to activate an amendment to this lease. Pursuant to the amendment, in June 2014 , the 
Company returned 54,940 square feet of its previously leased space of 426,165 square feet. Employees located in this area were relocated to 
other areas within the Company's remaining space. The Company recorded a charge of approximately $2.6 million during the three months 
ended June 30, 2014 in connection with this amendment, which is included within the lease amendment charge line item of the consolidated 
statements of income. The Company anticipates expense savings of approximately $7.0 million through October 31, 2018 , with approximately 
$0.8 million of those savings expected in the second half of 2014.  
 
The Company also consolidated certain of its other leased office space resulting in an additional charge of $0.1 million during the three months 
ended June 30, 2014 . This amount is included within the lease amendment charge line item of the consolidated statements of income.  
 
The following presents the Company's future minimum lease commitments as of June 30, 2014 , in thousands:  

  

 
(1) Includes $1.9 million lease termination payment related to the lease amendment.  

 
The Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, although the lease may include escalation clauses 
providing for lower payments at the beginning of the lease term and higher payments at the end of the lease term. Cash or lease incentives 
received from lessors are recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of rent expense from the date the Company takes possession of the 
property through the end of the lease term. The Company records the unamortized portion of the incentive as a component of deferred rent, in 
accrued liabilities or long-term liabilities, as appropriate.  
 
On January 4, 2012, RDI entered into an agreement to assign its lease in the UK to Glasgow Caledonian University (GCU) for the remainder of 
the lease term, which expires in May 2020. Under the terms of the agreement, GCU covenants to the lessor that it will pay the remaining rents 
under the lease term. However, the lessor required that RDI act as guarantor for GCU in the event GCU defaults under the lease. The Company 
believes default by GCU under the lease, and therefore any future payment by RDI as guarantor to GCU under this arrangement, is remote.    
 
Revolving Credit Facility  

On September 30, 2011, the Company entered into an unsecured revolving credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) with Bank of America, 
N.A., and certain other lenders. The Credit Agreement provides $100.0 million of borrowing capacity (the credit facility), with an increase 
option of an additional $50.0 million . The Credit Agreement expires on September 30, 2016 .  
 
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus an applicable rate of 
1.75% to 2.25% based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio or, at the Company’s option, an alternative base rate (defined as the 
higher of (a) the federal funds rate plus 0.5% ; (b) Bank of America’s prime rate; or (c) the one-month LIBOR plus 1.0% ) plus an applicable 
rate of 0.75% to 1.25% based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio. The Credit Agreement requires payment of a commitment fee, 
based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, charged on the unused credit facility. The Company recorded commitment fee expenses 
of $0.1 million and $0.2 million in other expense, net, for the three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 , and the six months ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013 , respectively. Outstanding letters of credit are also charged a fee, based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio. The 
Company capitalized approximately $0.5 million of debt issuance costs related to the credit facility, which are being amortized on a straight-
line basis over a period of five years. Interest expense for the amortization of debt issuance costs is recorded in other expense, net.  
 
The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants that, among other things, require maintenance of certain financial ratios, as defined in the 
agreement. Failure to comply with the covenants contained in the Credit Agreement will constitute an event of  
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2014  $ 3,499  
2015 (1)  8,146  
2016  6,185  
2017  6,009  
2018  4,878  
2019 and thereafter  — 

Total  $ 28,717  
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default and could result in termination of the agreement and require payment of all outstanding borrowings. As of June 30, 2014 , there were no 
borrowings under the credit facility, and the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.  
 
Litigation  

In the ordinary conduct of business, the Company is subject to various lawsuits and claims covering a wide range of matters including, but not 
limited to, claims involving learners or graduates and routine employment matters. While the outcome of these matters is uncertain, the 
Company does not believe there are any significant matters as of June 30, 2014 that are probable or estimable, for which the outcome could 
have a material adverse impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.  
 
9. Share Repurchase Program and Dividends  
 
Share Repurchase Program  

The Company announced its current share repurchase program in July 2008. The Board of Directors authorizes repurchases of outstanding 
shares of common stock from time to time depending on market conditions and other considerations. A summary of the Company’s 
comprehensive share repurchase activity from the program's commencement through June 30, 2014 , all of which was part of its publicly 
announced program, is presented below, in thousands:    

 
The following table summarizes shares repurchased, in thousands: 

 
As of June 30, 2014 , the Company had purchased an aggregate of 5.5 million shares under the program’s outstanding authorizations at an 
average price per share of $44.55 totaling $246.3 million .  
 
Dividends  

During the six months ended June 30, 2014 , the Company declared the following cash dividends, in thousands except per share amounts:  

 
During the three months ended June 30, 2014 , the dividend of $0.35 per outstanding share of common stock declared on May 6, 2014 was 
recorded as a reduction to retained earnings. Of the total dividend amount, $4.3 million is attributable to shares of common stock outstanding as 
of the record date and restricted stock units expected to vest in the next twelve months. This amount is classified as dividends payable in the 
Company's consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2014 . The remaining balance is attributable to restricted stock units expected to vest 
subsequent to the next twelve months and is classified as other liabilities in the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2014 . All 
future dividends are subject to declaration by the Company's Board of Directors and may be adjusted due to future business needs or other 
factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.  
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Board authorizations:     

July 2008  $ 60,000  
August 2010  60,662  
February 2011  65,000  
December 2011  50,000  
August 2013  50,000  

Total amount authorized  285,662  
Total value of shares repurchased  246,262  
Residual authorization  $ 39,400  

   Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013  

Shares repurchased  166    55  
Total consideration, excluding commissions  $ 9,919    $ 2,135  

Declaration Date    Record Date    Payment Date    Dividend per Share    Total Dividend Amount  

February 20, 2014    March 26, 2014    April 10, 2014    $ 0.35    $ 4,382  
May 6, 2014    June 11, 2014    July 10, 2014    $ 0.35    $ 4,354  
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There were no dividends declared or paid during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 .  
 
10. Share-Based Compensation  
 
Share-Based Incentive Plans  

On May 6, 2014 , the Company implemented a stock incentive plan (the 2014 Plan) that allows for incentive stock options, non-qualified stock 
options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricted stock awards (RSAs), stock unit awards, and other stock-based awards to be granted to 
employees, directors, officers, and others. The 2014 Plan authorized the issuance of 480,000 shares of the Company's common stock, plus 
830,888 shares that remained available for future grants under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan) on the effective date of the 2014 
Plan. Upon effectiveness of the 2014 Plan, no further awards will be made under the 2005 Plan. As of June 30, 2014, the maximum number of 
shares of common stock reserved under the 2014 Plan was approximately 1.3 million , of which 1.3 million shares were available for grant.  
 
The Board of Directors establishes the terms and conditions of all grants, subject to the 2014 Plan and applicable provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code (the Code). Under the 2014 Plan, options must be granted at an exercise price not less than the fair market value of the 
Company’s common stock on the grant date. The options expire on the date determined by the Board of Directors, but may not extend more 
than ten years from the grant date. The options generally become exercisable over a four-year period. Restricted stock units (RSUs) generally 
vest over a three year period. Canceled options and RSUs become available for reissuance under the 2014 Plan. Upon an exercise of stock 
options, the Company issues new shares.  
 
The Company also has issued stock options under two discontinued plans (the 2005 Plan and the 1999 Plan). Stock options, restricted stock 
units, and market stock units issued pursuant to the 2005 Plan, and stock options issued pursuant to the 1999 Plan, are still outstanding. 
However, unexercised options that are canceled upon termination of employment are not available for reissuance under the 2005 or 1999 Plan.  
 
Share-Based Compensation Expense  

The table below reflects the Company’s share-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income, in thousands:  

 
Effective in 2014, the Company evaluated the allocation of share-based compensation among its operating expense categories and determined 
reallocation of expenses related to certain executives and directors was necessary to best align with the Company's organizational structure. 
Prior to 2014, share-based compensation expense related to awards granted to certain executives and members of the Company's Board of 
Directors was allocated among all of the Company's operating expense categories. Effective in 2014, the Company is now including all share-
based compensation expense related to awards granted to these individuals as general and administrative.  
 
Additionally, during the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Company increased its forfeiture estimate for stock-based awards based on its 
historical experience. Any changes in the forfeiture assumptions do not impact the total amount of expense ultimately recognized over the 
vesting period. Instead, different forfeiture assumptions only impact the timing of expense recognition over the vesting period. If actual 
forfeitures differ from management estimates, additional adjustments to compensation expense are recorded.  
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   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  

   2014    2013    2014    2013  

Instructional costs and services  $ 60    $ 294    $ 308    $ 761  
Marketing and promotional  (46 )   94    47    243  
Admissions advisory  16    10    30    26  
General and administrative  1,281    626    2,373    1,576  

Share-based compensation expense included in 
operating income  1,311    1,024    2,758    2,606  
Tax benefit from share-based compensation 
expense  325    379    839    964  
Share-based compensation expense, net of tax  $ 986    $ 645    $ 1,919    $ 1,642  
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11. Acquisitions and Other Investments  
 
During the six months ended June 30, 2014 , the Company made a cost method investment in a limited partnership in the amount of $1.1 
million , with a commitment to invest up to an additional $3.9 million over the next ten years. The partnership invests in innovative companies 
in the health care field. The Company's investment comprises less than 3.0% of the total partnership interest and is classified as other assets in 
the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 .  
 
12. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss  
 
The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, in thousands:  

 

 
There were no reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss to net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013 .  
 
13. Regulatory Supervision and Oversight  
 
Political and budgetary concerns significantly affect the Title IV Programs. Congress reauthorizes the Higher Education Act ( HEA) and other 
laws governing Title IV Programs approximately every five to eight years. The last reauthorization of the HEA was completed in August 2008. 
Additionally, Congress reviews and determines appropriations for Title IV programs on an annual basis through the budget and appropriations 
processes. As of June 30, 2014 , programs in which the University's learners participate are operative and sufficiently funded.  
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Foreign Currency Translation 

Loss    
Unrealized Gain on 

Marketable Securities    
Accumulated Other 

Comprehensive Loss (1)  

Beginning balance, December 31, 2013  $ (142 )   $ 28    $ (114 ) 

Current period change  (504 )   17    (487 ) 

Ending balance, June 30, 2014  $ (646 )   $ 45    $ (601 ) 

(1)  Accumulated other comprehensive loss is presented net of tax of $26 thousand and $17 thousand as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 
2013 , respectively.  
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
 
The following discussion of our historical results of operations and our liquidity and capital resources should be read in conjunction with the 
consolidated financial statements and related notes that appear elsewhere in this report.  
 
Forward-Looking Statements  

Statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that are not statements of historical fact should be considered forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”). In addition, certain statements in our future 
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), in press releases, and in oral and written statements made by us or with our 
approval that are not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Act. Examples of forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding: proposed new programs; regulatory developments; projections, 
predictions, expectations, estimates or forecasts as to our business, financial and operational results and future economic performance; and 
statements of management’s goals and objectives and other similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. Words such as 
“may,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “future,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” 
“estimates” and similar expressions, as well as statements in future tense, are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the 
exclusive means of identifying such statements.  
 
Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those in such statements. 
Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those 
described in “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 , as updated in 
our subsequent reports filed with the SEC, including any updates found in Part II, Item 1A of this or other Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. 
The performance of our business and our securities may be adversely affected by these factors and by other factors common to other businesses 
and investments, or to the general economy. Forward-looking statements are qualified by some or all of these risk factors. Therefore, you 
should consider these risk factors with caution and form your own critical and independent conclusions about the likely effect of these risk 
factors on our future performance. Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which statements are made, and we undertake 
no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made to 
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events or circumstances. Readers should carefully review the disclosures and the risk factors described 
in this and other documents we file from time to time with the SEC.  
 
Executive Overview  

We are an online postsecondary education services company. As of June 30, 2014 , our wholly owned subsidiaries included the following:  

 
We believe we have the right operating strategies in place to continually differentiate ourselves in our markets and drive growth  
by supporting learner success, producing affordable degrees, expanding our comprehensive marketing strategy, serving a  
broader set of our learner's professional needs and establishing new growth platforms. Technology and the talent of our faculty  
and employees enable these strategies. We believe these strategies and enablers will allow us to continue to deliver high quality,  
affordable education, resulting in continued growth over the long-term. We will continue to invest in these enablers to  
strengthen the foundation and future of our business.  
 
Key Trends, Developments and Challenges  

The following developments and trends present opportunities, challenges and risks toward achieving our goal of providing attractive returns to 
our shareholders:  
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•  Capella University (the University) is a regionally accredited university that offers a variety of undergraduate and graduate degree 
programs primarily for working adults.  

•  Resource Development International Limited (RDI) is an independent provider of United Kingdom (UK) university distance 
learning qualifications that markets, develops and delivers these programs worldwide via its offices and partners across Asia, North 
America, Africa and Europe.   

•  Sophia Learning, LLC (Sophia) is a social teaching and learning platform that integrates education with technology. 

•  Capella Learning Solutions (CLS) is a subsidiary that provides online training solutions and services to corporate partners which 
are delivered through Capella's online learning platform.  
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As a result of these initiatives, early cohort persistence improved by approximately four percent over the prior year. Early cohort 
persistence measures the four-quarter weighted moving average new cohort persistence rate during learners' first four quarters of 
enrollment. Our learner success strategy primarily focuses on the first four quarters, since learners tend to persist at a very high rate 
after that time period.  
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•  Initiatives to improve learner success . As we continue to position Capella to drive sustainable growth, we are focused on 
improving learner success rates particularly in the first four quarters of enrollment, while maintaining a high standard of academic 
quality and rigor. While certain initiatives could affect our growth and profitability in the near-term, we believe these efforts are in 
the best interest of our learners and over the long-term will improve learner success and lifetime revenue, which, in turn, positions 
us for more sustainable long-term growth. These initiatives include the following:  

•  Optimizing and enhancing our actionable analytics capabilities to further leverage data, refine our models and accurately 
predict the likelihood of a prospective and new learner persisting to critical thresholds of success in the learner's first four 
quarters of enrollment;  

•  Piloting, implementing, and optimizing programs such as assessments and orientations to create personalized pathways for 
different learner groups which focus on transitioning learners into the online environment, creating a supportive 
community, and providing a proactive support structure;  

•  Providing timely and clear information to our learners, faculty, advisors and staff to help learners persist and successfully 
complete their programs;  

•  Optimizing our marketing approaches to increase emphasis on attracting learners who are more likely to persist in our 
programs;  

•  Promoting affordability and encouraging learners to persist by offering learner success grants to new learners who meet 
admissions requirements, enroll, apply within certain timeframes, and stay continuously enrolled; and,  

•  Diversifying outside of Capella University by creating innovative new learning technologies that have potential to increase 
affordability, and better serve the life-long learning needs of working adult professionals and therefore increase learner 
success.  

•  PhD Completion . We are focused on improving the success of our learners later in their programs at the doctoral level. We are 
using our analytics capabilities to understand factors impacting learner success during the comprehensive exam and dissertation 
portion of our PhD programs. We use this information to further identify barriers and develop solutions supporting our learners’ 
success. We are implementing a plan designed to provide targeted help and guidance for our current learners in the dissertation 
phase to complete their program or provide other options, including changing their course of study or withdrawing from their 
program.  

•  New enrollment and persistence. New enrollment is an important indicator of revenue growth and Company profitability. Overall, 
new enrollments grew approximately 11 percent in the second quarter of 2014 compared to 12.7 percent in the same period in 
2013. New enrollment is calculated from the last day a new learner can drop a course without financial penalty. New enrollment 
growth in 2014 was led by our master's programs. Although new enrollment growth is an important metric, the combination of new 
enrollment and persistence are key drivers for total enrollment and revenue performance. We are building a sustainable business 
model focused on total enrollment growth.  

•  Comprehensive marketing strategy. Our strategic shift from a demand driven strategy towards a comprehensive marketing strategy, 
which is focused on building relationships with prospective learners early in their decision cycle, reinforces our commitment to 
quality inquiries by:  

•  Introducing prospective learners to Capella through channels such as mass media and strategic relationships with employers 
and professional organizations,  

•  Connecting with prospective learners by generating and nurturing inquiries through direct media such as natural search, our 
website, and display media, and  

•  Engaging with prospective learners by developing meaningful relationships such as through social media or direct 
engagement.  
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Our comprehensive marketing strategy is designed to produce long-term efficiencies and increase our ability to attract high-quality 
learners on a sustainable basis. While some of these initiatives may adversely impact our new enrollment, revenues, and operating 
margins for a period of time as we pursue improved long-term results, we believe that our return to reporting new enrollment 
growth against positive new enrollment growth in the prior year quarter highlights the success of this strategy.  
 

   
We received approval to offer a new learning model called FlexPath in 2013. This new learning model allows learners to complete 
coursework at their own pace throughout each quarter and complete activities to demonstrate specific competencies by the end of 
the quarter. This offering is unique in that Capella University is the only institution with approval from The Higher Learning 
Commission and the Department of Education to offer programs at the undergraduate and graduate level. This allows learners 
enrolled in FlexPath to apply for federal financial aid. We believe this direct assessment model provides an opportunity to expand 
our served market and drive affordability through lower tuition costs, reduced time to completion, and increased flexibility. Our 
goal is to make sure learners have the right experience and that we understand what our learners need to succeed; therefore, we 
don’t expect FlexPath to be a significant business driver in the near-term. Currently, we offer two Department of Education 
approved programs - the Master's of Business Administration and the Bachelor's of Business Administration. On April 24, 2014 we 
introduced four additional FlexPath programs that have not yet received approval by the Department of Education, the Bachelor’s 
and Master’s in Information Technology and the Bachelor’s and Master’s in Psychology.  
 

 

 

 
We also consolidated other leased office space resulting in an additional charge of $0.1 million during the quarter ended June 30, 
2014. This amount is included within the lease amendment charge line item of the consolidated statements of income.  
 

Regulatory Environment  

The following summarizes significant regulatory matters applicable to our business. For a more detailed discussion of the regulatory 
environment and related risks, refer to Part 2, Item 7, Key Trends, Developments and Challenges, and Regulatory Environment in our 2013 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 .  
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•  Establishing new growth platforms. We seek to drive long-term growth that is an extension of our core competencies into new and 
expanded markets. This may result in increased new business development costs focused on researching, identifying, and 
cultivating these new market opportunities.  

•  Redesign of programs and specializations . In our continued efforts to drive affordability and speed to competency, we are focused 
on maximizing efficiencies in our existing programs while delivering the same learning outcomes. Our curriculum is based on 
competency mappings, which we are able to leverage as we redesign existing offerings. We believe these types of redesigns have 
the potential to increase persistence rates, learner success, and affordability.  

•  Current market and regulatory environment. The market conditions remain challenging and competition is strong; however, we 
continue to focus on attracting the right learners and learner success. We believe our initiatives to improve learner success through 
innovation will position us to continue to be a leader in the online postsecondary education market. Additionally, we are working to 
even more closely align with employers. Developments in the federal regulatory environment impact us as well, including the 
upcoming reauthorization of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, and the current Department of Education rulemaking 
processes. Many states have also become more active in regulating online education, especially regarding approval to operate 
requirements, and enforcement of consumer protection laws by state attorneys general, especially with proprietary institutions. 
While we have a strong track record of regulatory compliance, such actions, even if not directed at Capella University, may make 
our operating environment more challenging.  

•  Lease amendment. On April 3, 2014, we accepted notice to activate an amendment to our current lease for our premises at 225 
South Sixth Street in Minneapolis, MN. Pursuant to the amendment, in June 2014, we returned 54,940 square feet of our previously 
leased space of 426,165 square feet. Employees located in this area were relocated to other areas within our remaining space. We 
recorded a charge of approximately $2.6 million during the three months ended June 30, 2014 in connection with this amendment, 
which is included within the lease amendment charge line item of the consolidated statements of income. We anticipate expense 
savings of approximately $7.0 million through October 31, 2018, with approximately $0.8 million of those savings expected in the 
second half of 2014.  
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The rule closed for public comment on May 25, 2014. The Department of Education has until November 1, 2014 to publish a final 
rule in order for the rule to be effective July 1, 2015. The substance of final regulations dealing with gainful employment cannot be 
predicted at this time.  

 

 

 

 

   
The cohort default rate requirements were modified by the Higher Education Opportunity Act enacted in August 2008 to increase 
by one year the measuring period for each cohort. Starting in September 2012, the Department of Education published the official 
three-year cohort default rates in addition to the two-year rates, beginning with the  
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•  Gainful Employment. The Department of Education published a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking on March 25, 2014. The proposed 
rule applies to all Gainful Employment (GE) programs, which include non-degree programs at public and private non-profit 
institutions, and all programs offered by for-profit institutions. The proposed rule is similar to the draft language last discussed at 
the third negotiated rulemaking committee session in December 2013. The rule establishes two “accountability metrics” that GE 
programs must satisfy in order to remain eligible for Title IV federal student aid, specifically debt to earnings (DTE) ratios and 
programmatic cohort default rate (pCDR) thresholds. Unlike the accountability metrics in the Department of Education’s previous 
GE rule, the accountability metrics under the Department of Education's current proposal operate independently from one another. 
Consequently, in order for a GE program to maintain its Title IV eligibility under the proposed rule, it must satisfy both the DTE 
and pCDR requirements. The proposed rule also requires institutions to provide certifications regarding a GE program’s 
satisfaction of programmatic accreditation and state licensure requirements. Additionally, the proposed rule includes requirements 
for the reporting of student and program data by institutions to the Department of Education, and expands the disclosure 
requirements that have been in effect since July 1, 2011. The rule further makes other conforming and technical revisions to the 
Title IV program participation agreement and related regulations.  

•  Current negotiated rulemaking. On November 20, 2013, the Department of Education announced another round of negotiated 
rulemaking to focus on the following issues: cash management of funds provided under the Title IV Federal Student Aid programs, 
including the use of debit cards and the handling of Title IV credit balances; state authorization for programs offered through 
distance education or correspondence education; state authorization for foreign locations of institutions located in a State; clock to 
credit hour conversion; definition of “adverse credit” for borrowers in the Federal Direct PLUS Loan Program; and application of 
the repeat coursework provisions to graduate and undergraduate programs. Negotiations took place February 19-21, March 26-28, 
and April 23-25, 2014. An additional session took place May 19-20, 2014 to examine the remaining issues and take a consensus 
vote on the entire rule making package. The Committee did not reach consensus at this session, and the development of the draft 
rule shifted back to the Department of Education.  

•  Program Participation Agreement. Capella University's Program Participation Agreement (PPA) with the Department of 
Education expired on June 30, 2014. The University applied for reapproval (recertification) in March 2014, and as of July 1, 2014 
it is operating on a Month to Month Fully Certified approval status. The Department of Education’s School Participation Division 
has informed us that it does not foresee any problems with approving the institutional PPA as Fully Certified once the Department 
of Education's Direct Assessment Work Group acts upon pending FlexPath programs for Title IV eligibility.  

•  Minnesota Office of Higher Education student debt information request.  The Minnesota Office of Higher Education (MOHE) is 
developing state level metrics related to average student loan debt. The data request was sent to all schools located within the state. 
The final report will be published by institution and sector (public 2-year, public 4-year, private not-for-profit, and private for-
profit) covering average educational loan debt (excluding PLUS loans) of degree recipients by award level for 2011-2012. The 
student loan debt is debt from all sources (federal, state, institution, private) known to the institution. We are working with MOHE 
on this request. The date for the report to be published has not been determined.  

•  Student loan cohort default rates . To remain eligible to participate in Title IV programs, an educational institution's student loan 
cohort default rates must remain below certain specified levels. Under current regulations, an educational institution will lose its 
eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if its two-year measuring period student loan cohort default rate equals or exceeds 
25% for three consecutive cohort years, or 40% for any given year. Capella University's two-year cohort default rates for the 2011 
and 2010 cohorts are 10.2% and 7.0%, respectively. This increase is primarily due to the overall economic environment, and an 
increased percentage of Capella University learners enrolled in a bachelor's program, who generally have a higher default rate 
compared to graduate learners.  



Table of Contents  
 

2009 cohort. If an institution's three-year cohort default rate exceeds 30% for three consecutive years (compared to 25% under the 
current two-year standard), it must establish a default prevention task force and develop a default prevention plan with measurable 
objectives for improving the cohort default rate. We believe that our current repayment management efforts meet these 
requirements.  
 
If an institution's three-year cohort default rates for the 2009 and 2010 cohorts exceed 30%, the institution may be subject to 
provisional certification imposing various additional requirements for participation in Title IV programs. Beginning with the three-
year cohort default rate for the 2011 cohort published in September 2014, the three-year rates will be applied for purposes of 
measuring compliance with the requirements. If the three-year cohort default rate for the 2011 cohort exceeds 40%, the institution 
will cease to be eligible to participate in Title IV programs, and if the institution's three-year cohort default rate exceeds 30% for 
three consecutive years, beginning with the 2009 cohort, the institution will cease to be eligible to participate in Title IV programs. 
Capella University's three-year cohort default rates for the 2010 and 2009 cohorts are 10.9% and 9.7%, respectively. During the 
first quarter of 2014, the 2011 three-year draft cohort default rates were released by the Department of Education. Capella 
University's 2011 three-year draft cohort default rate is 13.1%. The increase is primarily due to the overall economic environment, 
and a slight increase in the percentage of Capella University learners enrolled in a bachelor's program, who generally have a higher 
default rate compared to graduate learners. The 2011 three-year draft rate will be finalized in September 2014.  
 

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates  

Our critical accounting policies are disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 . During the six 
months ended June 30, 2014 , there have been no significant changes to our critical accounting policies.  
 
Results of Operations  

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2013  

The following selected financial data table should be referenced in connection with a review of the discussion of our results of operations for 
the three months ended June 30, 2014 :  

 
Revenues. The increase in revenues compared to the same quarter in the prior year was primarily related to Capella University price increases 
and RDI enrollment growth. Capella University weighted average tuition increase in the current quarter was less than three percent and was 
implemented in July 2013. These increases were partially offset by a larger proportion of bachelor's and certificate learners who generate less 
revenue per learner than our master's and doctoral learners, and a 0.6 percent decrease in total Capella University enrollments at June 30, 2014 
compared to the same period in 2013.  

Instructional costs and services expenses. Instructional costs and services expenses, and instructional costs and services expenses as a percent 
of revenue, increased compared to the same quarter in the prior year primarily due to increased investment in our initiative to focus on coaching 
new learners during the first year of their academic experience and continued  
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   Three Months Ended June 30,  

   $ (in thousands, unaudited)    $ Change    % Change    % of Revenue  

   2014    2013    2014 vs. 2013    2014    2013    2014 vs. 2013  

Revenues  $ 104,832    $ 103,693    $ 1,139    1.1  %   100.0  %   100.0 %   0.0  % 

Costs and expenses:                                   

Instructional costs and services  45,530    44,900    630    1.4    43.4    43.3    0.1  
Marketing and promotional  23,113    24,101    (988 )   (4.1 )    22.0    23.3    (1.3 )  

Admissions advisory  7,146    6,727    419    6.2    6.8    6.5    0.3  
General and administrative  10,889    10,500    389    3.7    10.4    10.1    0.3  
Lease amendment charges  2,690    —   2,690    100.0    2.6    —   2.6  
Total costs and expenses  89,368    86,228    3,140    3.6    85.2    83.2    2.0  
Operating income  15,464    17,465    (2,001 )   (11.5 )    14.8    16.8    (2.0 )  

Other expense, net  (171 )    (25 )    (146 )   584.0    (0.2 )    —   (0.2 )  

Income before income taxes  15,293    17,440    (2,147 )   (12.3 )    14.6    16.8    (2.2 )  

Income tax expense  6,249    7,018    (769 )   (11.0 )    6.0    6.8    (0.8 )  

Effective tax rate  40.9 %    40.2 %                           

Net income  $ 9,044    $ 10,422    $ (1,378 )   (13.2 )%   8.6  %   10.0 %   (1.4 )% 
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investment in course development. This overall increase was partially offset by a decrease in amortization expense as a result of certain 
intangible assets associated with RDI becoming fully amortized in 2014 and the reallocation of share-based compensation expense related to 
awards granted to certain Company executives and members of its Board of Directors as general and administrative in 2014.  

Marketing and promotional expenses. Marketing and promotional expenses, and marketing and promotional expenses as a percent of revenue, 
decreased compared to the same quarter in the prior year primarily driven by cost efficiencies gained through optimization of our Capella 
University and RDI marketing efforts as well as the reallocation of share-based compensation expense to general and administrative in 2014. 
This overall decrease was partially offset by additional employee expenses driven by increased headcount.  

Admissions advisory expenses. Admissions advisory expenses, and admissions advisory expenses as a percent of revenue, increased compared 
to the same quarter in the prior year primarily due to increased enrollment services headcount to support higher Capella University inquiry 
volume.  

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses, and general and administrative expenses as a percent of revenue, 
increased compared to the same quarter in the prior year primarily as a result of the reallocation of approximately $0.5 million of share-based 
compensation expense from instructional costs and services and marketing and promotional in 2014.  

Lease amendment charges. On April 3, 2014, we accepted notice to activate an amendment to our current lease for our premises at 225 South 
Sixth Street in Minneapolis, Minnesota. Pursuant to the amendment, in June 2014, we returned 54,940 square feet of our previously leased 
space of 426,165 square feet. We recorded a charge of $2.6 million during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 in connection with this amendment. 
We also consolidated other leased office space resulting in an additional charge of $0.1 million during the quarter ended June 30, 2014.  

Other expense, net. Other expense, net was $0.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014 , and $25 thousand for the three months 
ended June 30, 2013 . The increase compared to the same quarter in the prior year is primarily attributable to the impact of the change in fair 
value of the RDI contingent consideration liability which was paid during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as a result of the awarding of TDAP, 
and also the result of foreign currency exchange rates.  
 
Income tax expense. The increase in our effective tax rate compared to the same quarter in the prior year was primarily driven by an increase 
in nondeductible expenses which were partially offset by a decrease in foreign operating losses in the current period. We do not receive a 
benefit on these losses due to a full valuation allowance.  
 

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2013  

The following selected financial data table should be referenced in connection with a review of the discussion of our results of operations for 
the six months ended June 30, 2014 :  
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   Six Months Ended June 30,  

   $ (in thousands, unaudited)    $ Change    % Change    % of Revenue  

   2014    2013    2014 vs. 2013    2014    2013    2014 vs. 2013  

Revenues  $ 210,428    $ 208,935    $ 1,493    0.7  %   100.0  %   100.0  %   0.0  % 

Costs and expenses:                                   

Instructional costs and services  92,830    91,867    963    1.0    44.1    44.0    0.1  
Marketing and promotional  48,874    49,602    (728 )   (1.5 )    23.2    23.7    (0.5 )  

Admissions advisory  14,073    13,498    575    4.3    6.7    6.5    0.2  
General and administrative  21,354    21,328    26    0.1    10.1    10.2    (0.1 )  

Lease amendment charges  2,690    —   2,690    100.0    1.3    —   1.3  
Total costs and expenses  179,821    176,295    3,526    2.0    85.4    84.4    1.0  
Operating income  30,607    32,640    (2,033 )   (6.2 )    14.6    15.6    (1.0 )  

Other expense, net  (513 )    (225 )    (288 )   128.0    (0.3 )    (0.1 )    (0.2 )  

Income before income taxes  30,094    32,415    (2,321 )   (7.2 )    14.3    15.5    (1.2 )  

Income tax expense  12,233    13,238    (1,005 )   (7.6 )    5.8    6.3    (0.5 )  

Effective tax rate  40.6 %    40.8 %                           

Net income  $ 17,861    $ 19,177    $ (1,316 )   (6.9 )%   8.5  %   9.2  %   (0.7 )% 
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Revenues. The increase in revenues compared to the same period in the prior year was primarily related to Capella University price increases 
and RDI enrollment growth. Capella University weighted average tuition increases in 2014 were less than three percent and were implemented 
in July 2013. The overall increase was partially offset by a decrease in total Capella University enrollments for the six months ended June 30, 
2014 compared to the same period in 2013, a larger proportion of bachelor's and certificate learners who generate less revenue per learner than 
our master's and doctoral learners, and an increase in grants to support our initiatives to improve learner success and other discounts.  

Instructional costs and services expenses. Instructional costs and services expenses, and instructional costs and services expenses as a percent 
of revenue, increased compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to increased investment in our initiative to focus on coaching 
new learners during the first year of their academic experience, and continued investment in course development. This overall increase was 
partially offset by a decrease in amortization expense as a result of certain intangible assets associated with RDI becoming fully amortized in 
2014 and the reallocation of share-based compensation expense related to awards granted to certain Company executives and members of its 
Board of Directors as general and administrative in 2014.  

Marketing and promotional expenses. Marketing and promotional expenses, and marketing and promotional expenses as a percent of revenue, 
decreased compared to the same period in the prior year primarily driven by cost efficiencies gained through optimization of our Capella 
University and RDI marketing efforts, lower depreciation expense as a result of certain assets becoming fully depreciated in 2014, as well as 
the reallocation of share-based compensation expense to general and administrative in 2014. This overall decrease was partially offset by 
additional employee expenses driven by increased headcount.  

Admissions advisory expenses. Admissions advisory expenses, and admissions advisory expenses as a percent of revenue, increased compared 
to the same period in the prior year primarily due to increased enrollment services headcount to support higher Capella University inquiry 
volume.  

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses as a percent of revenue decreased compared to the same period in 
the prior year primarily as a result of the prior year’s investment in our new market platforms, including delivery of a significant employer 
project; and reduced headcount in the current year. This decrease was partially offset by the reallocation of approximately $0.7 million of 
share-based compensation expense from instructional costs and services and marketing and promotional in 2014, and increased participation in 
monitoring and shaping government regulations.  

Lease amendment charges. On April 3, 2014, we accepted notice to activate an amendment to our current lease for our premises at 225 South 
Sixth Street in Minneapolis, Minnesota. Pursuant to the amendment, in June 2014, we returned 54,940 square feet of our previously leased 
space of 426,165 square feet. We recorded a charge of $2.6 million during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 in connection with this amendment. 
Additionally, we consolidated other leased office space resulting in an additional charge of $0.1 million during the quarter ended June 30, 
2014.  

Other expense, net. Other expense, net was $0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014, and $0.2 million for the six months ended 
June 30, 2013. The increase in expense compared to the same period in the prior year was primarily due to the change in fair value of the RDI 
contingent consideration liability which was paid during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as a result of the awarding of TDAP; and also the 
result of foreign currency exchange rates and management fees related to our limited partnership investment.  

Income tax expense. The decrease in our effective tax rate compared to the same period in the prior year was primarily driven by a decrease in 
foreign operating losses in the current period. We do not receive a benefit on these losses due to the establishment of a full valuation allowance. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources  
 
Liquidity  

We financed our operating activities and capital expenditures during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 primarily through cash 
provided by operating activities. Our cash and cash equivalents were $88.5 million and $124.1 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 
2013 , respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents decreased primarily due to net purchases of marketable securities, increased cash used in 
financing activities for repurchases of common stock, the payment of dividends, payment of the contingent consideration liability to RDI as a 
result of achievement of TDAP, and general business activities. This overall decrease in cash was partially offset by cash provided by operating 
activities.  
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On September 30, 2011, we entered into an unsecured revolving credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) with Bank of America, N.A., and 
certain other lenders. The Credit Agreement provides $100.0 million of borrowing capacity, with an increase option of an additional $50.0 
million. The Credit Agreement term ends September 30, 2016. As of June 30, 2014 , there were no borrowings under the credit facility and we 
were in compliance with all debt covenants.  
 
Significant portions of our revenues are derived from Title IV programs. Federal regulations dictate the timing of disbursements under Title IV 
programs. Learners must apply for new loans and grants each academic year, which begins July 1. Loan funds are provided through the 
William D. Ford Direct Loan program in multiple disbursements for each academic year. The disbursements are usually received by the 
beginning of the third week of the term. These factors, together with the timing of when our learners begin their programs, affect our operating 
cash flow. Based on current market conditions and recent regulatory or legislative actions, we do not anticipate any significant near-term 
disruptions in the availability of Title IV funding for our learners.  
 
On July 15, 2011, we acquired 100% of the share capital of RDI for £7.9 million (approximately $12.6 million), net of cash acquired. In 
connection with the agreement, we were required to make an additional payment of £4.0 million to the former shareholders of RDI when RDI 
was granted Taught Degree Awarding Power (TDAP). On April 14, 2014, RDI received notice from the British government of being awarded 
TDAP. Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition agreement, upon achievement of TDAP on May 12, 2014, we made an additional payment of 
£4.0 million (approximately $6.9 million) to the former shareholders of RDI.  
 
Based on our current level of operations and anticipated growth, we believe our cash provided by operations and other sources of liquidity, 
including cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, will provide adequate funds for ongoing operations and planned capital 
expenditures for the foreseeable future. We can further supplement our liquidity position with the $100.0 million credit facility to fund our 
operations or to fund strategic investments, if needed.  
 
Operating Activities  

Net cash provided by operating activities was $33.8 million and $41.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively. 
The decrease was primarily due to the effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities, a decrease in depreciation and amortization expense, 
the accumulated change in fair value of the RDI contingent consideration liability paid to the former shareholders of RDI upon achievement of 
TDAP, and the impact of deferred income taxes.  
 

Investing Activities  

Net cash used in investing activities is primarily related to the purchase or maturity of investments in marketable securities and investments in 
property and equipment. Net cash used in investing activities was $47.0 million and $25.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 
2013 , respectively.  
 
Cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2014 consisted primarily of purchases of marketable securities and 
investments in property and equipment, which were partially offset by maturities of marketable securities. Net purchases and maturities of 
marketable securities represented a cash outflow of $35.1 million and $15.3 million during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 .  
 
We believe the credit quality and liquidity of our investment portfolio as of June 30, 2014 is strong. The unrealized gains and losses of the 
portfolio may remain volatile as changes in the general interest rate environment and supply/demand fluctuations of the securities within our 
portfolio impact daily market valuations. To mitigate the risk associated with this market volatility, we deploy a relatively conservative 
investment strategy focused on capital preservation and liquidity. But even with this approach, we may incur investment losses as a result of 
unusual and unpredictable market developments and we may experience reduced investment earnings if the yields on investments deemed to be 
low risk remain low or decline further due to unpredictable market developments. In addition, these unusual and unpredictable market 
developments may also create liquidity challenges for certain of the assets in our investment portfolio.  
 
Capital expenditures were $10.8 million and $10.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, which primarily 
consisted of investments in learner success and enrollment management initiatives, academic quality, foundational priorities, enhancements to 
our visitor center and content management system, and investments in FlexPath programs.  
 
We lease all of our facilities. We expect to make future payments on existing leases from cash generated from operations.  
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Financing Activities  

Net cash used in financing activities was $22.5 million and $1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively. The 
increase in net cash used in financing activities is primarily the result of payments of cash dividends of $8.7 million in the current period and 
higher repurchases of our common stock compared to the prior period. In the first six months of 2014 , we repurchased $9.9 million of common 
stock under our share repurchase program compared to $2.1 million in the first six months of 2013 . Additionally, as a result of the 
achievement of TDAP, we made an additional payment of £4.0 million (approximately $6.9 million ) to the former shareholders of RDI on 
May 12, 2014 . Net cash used in financing activities of approximately $6.0 million reflects the initial fair value of the RDI contingent 
consideration liability recorded at acquisition, while the remaining amount of $0.9 million included within cash flows from operating activities 
represents the accumulated change in fair value of the RDI contingent consideration liability.  
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  
 
Market Risk  

The Company has no derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity instruments, and believes the risk related to cash equivalents 
and marketable securities is limited due to the adherence to its investment policy, which focuses on capital preservation and liquidity. In 
addition, all investments must have a minimum Standard & Poor’s rating of A minus (or equivalent) by at least one agency at the purchase 
date. All of the Company's cash equivalents and marketable securities were rated A- or higher as of June 30, 2014 , and BBB+ or higher as of 
December 31, 2013 , by at least one rating agency. In addition, the Company utilizes money managers who conduct initial and ongoing credit 
analysis on its investment portfolio to monitor and minimize the potential impact of market risk associated with its cash, cash equivalents and 
marketable securities. Despite the investment risk mitigation strategies the Company employs, it may incur investment losses as a result of 
unusual and unpredictable market developments and may experience reduced investment earnings if the yields on investments deemed to be 
low risk remain low or decline further in this time of economic uncertainty. Unusual and unpredictable market developments may also create 
liquidity challenges for certain assets in the Company's investment portfolio.  
 
Interest Rate Risk  

The Company manages interest rate risk by investing excess funds in cash equivalents and marketable securities bearing a combination of fixed 
and variable interest rates, which are tied to various market indices. The Company's future investment income may fall short of expectations 
due to changes in interest rates or it may suffer losses in principal if it is forced to sell securities that have declined in market value due to 
changes in interest rates. At June 30, 2014 , a 10% increase or decrease in interest rates would not have a material impact on the Company's 
future earnings, fair values, or cash flows.  
 
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk  

The Company uses the U.S. dollar as its reporting currency. The functional currencies of its foreign subsidiaries are generally the local 
currencies. Accordingly, the Company's foreign currency exchange risk is related to the following exposures:  
 

 
The Company has not used derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.  
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•  Adjustments resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet dates. These translation adjustments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income;  

•  Earnings volatility translation of income and expense items of the foreign subsidiaries using an average monthly exchange rate for the 
respective periods; and  

•  Gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange rate changes related to intercompany receivables and payables that are not of a long-
term investment nature, as well as gains and losses from foreign currency transactions. These items are recorded in other expense, net 
in the consolidated statements of income.  
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures  
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including the chief executive 
officer and the chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act).  
 
Based upon that evaluation, the chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective, as of June 30, 2014 , in ensuring that material information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it 
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules 
and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required 
to be disclosed by an issuer in reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, 
including its principal executive officer or officers and principal financial officer or officers, or persons performing similar functions, as 
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  
 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 
13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.  
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION  
 
Item 1. Legal Proceedings  
 
From time to time, the Company is a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. 
While the outcomes of these matters are uncertain, management does not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.  
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors  
 
There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in the “Risk Factors” section as updated in the Company's Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 2013 .  
 
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds  
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities  

None.  
 
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers  

During the three months ended June 30, 2014 , the Company repurchased $6.4 million of common stock under its share repurchase program. (1) 

Its remaining authorization for common stock repurchases was $39.4 million at June 30, 2014 . The following presents the Company's share 
repurchases during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 :    

   

 
 

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities  
 
None.  
 
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures  
 
Not applicable.  
 
Item 5. Other Information  
 
None.  
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Period  
Total Number of Shares  

Purchased    
Average Price Paid per  

Share    

Total Number of Shares 
Purchased as Part of 

Publicly Announced Plans or 
Programs    

Dollar Value of Shares That 
May Yet be Purchased Under 

the Plans or Programs    

4/1/2014 to 4/30/2014  28,355    $ 58.25    28,355    $ 44,147,780  
5/1/2014 to 5/31/2014  60,105    58.95    60,105    40,604,405  
6/1/2014 to 6/30/2014  21,575    55.84    21,575    39,399,583  
Total  110,035    58.16    110,035    39,399,583  

(1)  The Company announced its current share repurchase program in July 2008. As of June 30, 2014 , the Company's Board of Directors 
has authorized repurchases up to an aggregate amount of $285.7 million in value of common stock under the current program. The 
Board of Directors authorizes the Company to repurchase outstanding shares of common stock, from time to time, depending on 
market conditions and other considerations. There is no expiration date on the repurchase authorizations and repurchases occur at the 
Company's discretion.  
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Item 6. Exhibits  

(a) Exhibits    

Number     Description     Method of Filing  

          

3.1  

   

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation.  

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the  
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
SEC on November 11, 2006.  

          

3.2  

   

Second Amended and Restated By-Laws.  

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 
December 10, 2008.  
 

          

4.1  

   

Specimen of common stock certificate.  

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment 
No. 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-
1 filed with the SEC on October 19, 2006.  

10.1  

   

Capella Education Company 2014 Equity Incentive Plan  

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Company’s 
Definitive Proxy Statement for its 2014 annual meeting of 
shareholders filed with the SEC on March 24, 2014 (File 
No. 1-33140).  

          

10.2  

   

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement 
(Director) under the Capella Education Company 2014 
Equity Incentive Plan  
    

Filed electronically.  

          

10.3  

   

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement 
(Section (16(b) Officer) under the Capella Education 
Company 2014 Equity Incentive Plan  
    

Filed electronically.  

          

10.4  

   

Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Award Agreement 
(Section (16(b) Officer) under the Capella Education 
Company 2014 Equity Incentive Plan  
    

Filed electronically.  

          

31.1  
   

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to  
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.     

Filed electronically.  

          

31.2  
   

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to  
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.     

Filed electronically.  

          

32.1  

   

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to  
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to  
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.     

Filed electronically.  

          

32.2  

   

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to  
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to  
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.     

Filed electronically.  

          

EX-101.INS     XBRL Instance Document (1)       Filed electronically.  

          

EX-101.SCH     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (1)       Filed electronically.  

          

EX-101.CAL  
   

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase 
Document (1)       

Filed electronically.  
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EX-101.DEF  
   

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase 
Document (1)     

Filed electronically.  

          

EX-101.LAB  
   

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 
(1)       

Filed electronically.  

          

EX-101.PRE  
   

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase 
Document (1)       

Filed electronically.  

(1)    The XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of 
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to liability of that section and shall not be 
incorporated by reference into any filing or other document pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, except as shall be 
expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing or document.  
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

  

/s/ J. Kevin Gilligan  
 

July 29, 2014  
J. Kevin Gilligan  
Chief Executive Officer  

(Principal Executive Officer)  

  

/s/ Steven L. Polacek  
 

July 29, 2014  
Steven L. Polacek  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer   

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)  

  



 
 

Exhibit 10.2 
 

Capella Education Company  
2014 Equity Incentive Plan  

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement  
 

Terms and Conditions  
 

 

 

 
(a) Scheduled Vesting . If you remain a Service Provider to the Company or any of its Affiliates continuously from the Grant 
Date specified on the cover page of this Agreement, then the Units will vest in the numbers and on the dates specified in the Vesting 
Schedule on the cover page of this Agreement.  
 
(b) Accelerated Vesting . Vesting of outstanding Units (i) will be accelerated as provided in Section 6(e) of the Plan if your 
Service terminates due to your death, Disability or Retirement (defined for purposes of this Agreement as termination of Service 
(other than for Cause as defined below) at or after the earlier of age 65 or age 55 with seven years of service); and (ii) will or may be 
accelerated in connection with a Change in Control under the circumstances and to the extent described in Sections 12(b) and 12(c) of 
the Plan  

 
(c) Definition of “Cause”  . For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means termination of your Service in connection with 
any of the following: (i) your failure or refusal substantially to perform your duties to the full extent of your abilities for reasons other 
than death or Disability, after written notice to you of such failure or refusal providing you 30 days to take corrective action; (ii) your 
conviction of a felony crime, or commission of any act, the conviction for which would be a gross misdemeanor or felony conviction; 
or (iii) theft or misappropriation by you of the Company’s property.  

 

 

 

 
 

1.  Grant of Restricted Stock Units . You have been granted, subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement and the Plan, an 
Award of the number of Units specified on the cover page of this Agreement, each representing the right to receive one Share of the 
Company’s common stock. The Units granted to you will be credited to an account in your name maintained by the ECompany. This 
account shall be unfunded and maintained for book-keeping purposes only, with the Units simply representing an unfunded and 
unsecured obligation of the Company.  

2.  Restrictions on Units . Neither this Award nor the Units subject to this Award may be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or 
encumbered other than (i) a transfer upon your death in accordance with your will, by the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant 
to a beneficiary designation submitted in accordance with Section 6(d) of the Plan, or (ii) pursuant to a qualified domestic relations 
order. Following any such transfer, this Award shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were applicable to 
this Award immediately prior to its transfer. Any attempted transfer in violation of this Section 2 shall be of no effect and shall result 
in the forfeiture of all Units. The Units and your right to receive Shares in settlement of the Units under this Agreement shall be 
subject to forfeiture as provided in Section 4 until satisfaction of the vesting conditions set forth in Section 3.  

3.  Vesting of Units . 

4.  Effect of Termination of Service . Except as otherwise provided in Section 3(b) of this Agreement, if you cease to be a Service 
Provider prior to any Vesting Date(s) specified on the cover page of this Agreement, you will forfeit all unvested Units.  

5.  Dividend Equivalents . In the event the Company shall pay cash dividends on its Shares on or after the date of this Agreement, the 
Company shall credit, as of the dividend record date, an amount of cash dividend equivalents to your account. The amount of the 
dividend equivalents credited shall be determined by multiplying the number of Units credited to your account as of the dividend 
record date pursuant to this Agreement times the dollar amount of the cash dividend per Share. Your right to receive such accrued 
dividend equivalents shall vest, and the amount of the accrued dividend equivalents shall be paid in cash, to the same extent and at the 
same time as the underlying Units to which the dividend equivalents relate, as provided in Sections 3 and 6 of this Agreement. No 
interest shall accrue on any unpaid dividend equivalents. Any dividend equivalents accrued on Units that are forfeited in accordance 
with this Agreement shall also be forfeited.  

6.  Settlement and Payment of Units . After any Units vest pursuant to Section 3, the Company shall cause to be issued and delivered to 
you (or your permitted transferee) one Share in payment and settlement of each vested Unit (i) as soon as administratively practicable 
(but no later than the later of (a) the end of the calendar year in which the Units vest, or (b) the 15 th day of the third calendar month 
after the date the Units vest, and you will have no power to affect such timing)  



 
 

or (ii) if you have previously submitted a Deferral Election Form in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A to the Company no later 
than the December 31 immediately prior to the calendar year in which the Grant Date occurs, as soon as administrative practicable 
(but no later than ten days after) such other date(s) as set forth in the Deferral Election Form, and you shall have no power to affect the 
timing of such issuance. If the Units that vest and become payable include a fractional Unit, the Company will round the number of 
vested Units to the nearest whole Unit prior to delivery of Shares in settlement thereof. Delivery of the Shares shall be effected by the 
issuance of a stock certificate, by an appropriate entry in the stock register maintained by the Company’s transfer agent with a notice 
of issuance provided, or by the electronic delivery of the Shares to a designated brokerage account, and shall be subject to compliance 
with all applicable legal requirements, including compliance with the requirements of applicable federal and state securities laws, and 
shall be in complete satisfaction and settlement of such vested Units. The Company will pay any original issue or transfer taxes with 
respect to the issuance and delivery of the Shares to you, and all fees and expenses incurred by it in connection therewith. All Shares 
so issued will be fully paid and nonassessable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the ownership or issuance of Shares to you as 
provided herein is not feasible due to applicable exchange controls, securities or tax laws or other provisions of applicable law, as 
determined by the Board in its sole discretion, you (or your permitted transferee) shall receive in lieu of Shares cash in an amount 
equal to the Fair Market Value (as of the date vesting occurs) of the Shares otherwise issuable in settlement of the vested Units.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

7.  No Shareholder Rights . The Units subject to this Award do not entitle you (or any permitted transferee) to any rights of a 
shareholder of the Company’s common stock. You will not have any of the rights of a shareholder of the Company in connection with 
the grant of Units subject to this Agreement unless and until Shares are issued to you upon settlement of the Units as provided in 
Section 6.  

8.  Discontinuance of Service . This Agreement does not give you a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and 
the Company or any such Affiliate may terminate your Service at any time and otherwise deal with you without regard to the effect it 
may have upon you under this Agreement.  

9.  Governing Plan Document . This Agreement and Award are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules 
and regulations which may, from time to time, be adopted and promulgated by the Board pursuant to the Plan. If there is any conflict 
or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.  

10.  Choice of Law . This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the state of Minnesota (without regard to its 
conflicts or choice of law principles).  

11.  Binding Effect . This Agreement will be binding in all respects on your heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the 
successors and assigns of the Company.  

12.  Notices . Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered to the 
party for whom it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other 
party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices or communications by you to the Company 
shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its office at 225 South Sixth Street, 9 th Floor, Minneapolis, MN 55402, fax 
612.977.7050, and all notices or communications by the Company to you may be given to you personally or may be mailed to you at 
the address indicated in the Company's records as your most recent mailing address.  

13.  Section 409A of the Code . The provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in a manner intended to comply with 
Section 409A of the Code.  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  
_____ Restricted Stock Unit Deferral Election Form  

 
 

This Election applies to the Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Award anticipated to be granted to the Recipient by Capella Education 
Company (the “Company”) during calendar year ____ for the Recipient’s service as a non-employee director of the Company during 
_____.  
 
This Election will be effective as to the above referenced RSU Award only if this Election Form is received by the Company on or 
before December 31, _____.  

 
Election:  
 

I, the undersigned non-employee director of the Company, hereby elect the following settlement date for RSUs that have vested in 
accordance with the terms of the above referenced RSU Award from the Company: (check one)  

The vesting date set forth in the award agreement (default election).  

The date my service as a director of the Company ends.  

The earlier of (i) the date a Change in Control of the Company occurs, or (ii) the date my service as a director of the 
Company ends.  

 
I understand and acknowledge that:  

 
Signature:  
 

By signing and submitting this election form, I revoke any election form I may have previously submitted to the Company with 
respect to the RSUs subject to the award described above.  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

•  Any election to defer the settlement of RSUs granted to me pursuant to this Deferral Election Form means that my RSUs will not be 
settled upon the vesting date(s) set forth in the award agreement, which is the default settlement date if I do not make an election to 
defer hereunder;  

•  Any such election will be irrevocable as of December 31, _____; and 
•  My vested RSUs will be settled in a single lump sum payment on the settlement date I have chosen. 



 
 

Exhibit 10.3 
 

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  
 

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement  
Under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan  

 
Capella Education Company (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants and award of 

restricted stock units (“Units”) to you, the Participant named below. The terms and conditions of this restricted stock unit Award are set forth in 
this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (“Agreement”), consisting of this cover page and the Terms and Conditions on the following 
pages, and in the Plan document, a copy of which has been provided to you. To the extent any capitalized term used in this Agreement is not 
defined, it shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Plan as it currently exists or as it may be amended in the future.  

 

 
By signing below or otherwise evidencing your acceptance of this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all 

of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and in the Plan document. You acknowledge that you have reviewed these documents 
and that they set forth the entire agreement between you and the Company regarding the grant to you of the number of Units specified above.  
 
PARTICIPANT:      CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

 
 

By:________________________________  
Title:_______________________________  

 
 
 

Name of Participant:**[_______________________]  

Number of Units:**[_______]  Grant Date:__________, 20__  

Vesting and Exercise Schedule:  

Dates  Number of Units That Vest  



 
 

Capella Education Company  
2014 Equity Incentive Plan  

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement  
 

Terms and Conditions  
 

 

 

 
(a) Scheduled Vesting . Subject to Section 14 of this Agreement, if you remain a Service Provider to the Company or any of 
its Affiliates continuously from the Grant Date specified on the cover page of this Agreement, then the Units will vest in the numbers 
and on the dates specified in the Vesting Schedule on the cover page of this Agreement.  
 
(b) Accelerated or Continued Vesting . Subject to Section 14 of this Agreement, vesting of outstanding Units (i) will be 
accelerated as provided in Section 6(e) of the Plan if your Service terminates due to your death or Disability; (ii) will continue as 
provided in Section 6(e) of the Plan if your Service terminates due to your Retirement; and (iii) will or may be accelerated in 
connection with a Change in Control under the circumstances and to the extent described in Sections 12(b) and 12(c) of the Plan, or at 
the discretion of the Committee in accordance with Section 3(b)(2) of the Plan.  

 

 

 

 
 

1.  Grant of Restricted Stock Units . You have been granted, subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement and the Plan, an 
Award of the number of Units specified on the cover page of this Agreement, each representing the right to receive one Share of the 
Company’s common stock. The Units granted to you will be credited to an account in your name maintained by the Company. This 
account shall be unfunded and maintained for book-keeping purposes only, with the Units simply representing an unfunded and 
unsecured obligation of the Company.  

2.  Restrictions on Units . Neither this Award nor the Units subject to this Award may be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or 
encumbered other than (i) a transfer upon your death in accordance with your will, by the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant 
to a beneficiary designation submitted in accordance with Section 6(d) of the Plan, or (ii) pursuant to a qualified domestic relations 
order. Following any such transfer, this Award shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were applicable to 
this Award immediately prior to its transfer. Any attempted transfer in violation of this Section 2 shall be of no effect and shall result 
in the forfeiture of all Units. The Units and your right to receive Shares in settlement of the Units under this Agreement shall be 
subject to forfeiture as provided in Section 4 until satisfaction of the vesting conditions set forth in Section 3.  

3.  Vesting of Units . 

4.  Effect of Termination of Service . Except as otherwise provided in Section 3(b) of this Agreement, if you cease to be a Service 
Provider prior to any Vesting Date(s) specified on the cover page of this Agreement, you will forfeit all unvested Units.  

5.  Dividend Equivalents . In the event the Company shall pay cash dividends on its Shares on or after the date of this Agreement, the 
Company shall credit, as of the dividend record date, an amount of cash dividend equivalents to your account. The amount of the 
dividend equivalents credited shall be determined by multiplying the number of Units credited to your account as of the dividend 
record date pursuant to this Agreement times the dollar amount of the cash dividend per Share. Your right to receive such accrued 
dividend equivalents shall vest, and the amount of the accrued dividend equivalents shall be paid in cash, to the same extent and at the 
same time as the underlying Units to which the dividend equivalents relate, as provided in Sections 3 and 6 of this Agreement. No 
interest shall accrue on any unpaid dividend equivalents. Any dividend equivalents accrued on Units that are forfeited in accordance 
with this Agreement shall also be forfeited.  

6.  Settlement and Payment of Units . After any Units vest pursuant to Section 3, the Company shall, as soon as administratively 
practicable (but no later than the later of (i) the end of the calendar year in which the Units vest, or (ii) the 15 th day of the third 
calendar month after the date the Units vest, and you will have no power to affect such timing), cause to be issued and delivered to 
you (or your permitted transferee) one Share in payment and settlement of each vested Unit. If the Units that vest and become payable 
include a fractional Unit, the Company will round the number of vested Units to the nearest whole Unit prior to delivery of Shares in 
settlement thereof. Delivery of the Shares shall be effected by the issuance of a stock certificate, by an appropriate entry in the stock 
register maintained by the Company’s transfer agent with a notice of issuance provided, or by the electronic delivery of the Shares to a 
designated brokerage account, and shall be subject to the tax withholding provisions of Section 7 of this Agreement and compliance 
with all applicable legal requirements, including compliance with the requirements of applicable federal and state securities laws, and 
shall be in complete satisfaction and settlement of such vested Units. The Company will pay any original issue or transfer taxes with 
respect to the issuance and delivery of the Shares to you, and all fees and expenses incurred by it in connection  



 
 

therewith. All Shares so issued will be fully paid and nonassessable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the ownership or issuance of 
Shares to you as provided herein is not feasible due to applicable exchange controls, securities or tax laws or other provisions of 
applicable law, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, you (or your permitted transferee) shall receive in lieu of Shares 
cash in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value (as of the date vesting occurs) of the Shares otherwise issuable in settlement of the 
vested Units, net of any amount required to satisfy withholding tax obligations as provided in Section 7 of this Agreement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
(a)      By accepting this Award, you agree that during the period during which you provide Service to the Company 

and its Affiliates, and for twelve months following the date such Service ends (the “Restricted Period”) for any reason 
whatsoever, you will not, directly or indirectly:  

 

 

 

 
 
 

7.  Tax Consequences and Withholding . As a condition precedent to the delivery of Shares in settlement of the Units, you are required 
to make arrangements acceptable to the Company for payment of any federal, state, local or foreign withholding taxes that may be due 
as a result of the settlement of vested Units. You hereby authorize the Company (or any Affiliate) to withhold from payroll or other 
amounts payable to you any sums required to satisfy such withholding tax obligations, and otherwise agree to satisfy such obligations 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 14 of the Plan. If you wish to satisfy some or all of such withholding tax obligations by 
delivering Shares you already own or by having the Company retain a portion of the Shares that would otherwise be delivered to you 
in settlement of vested Units, you must make such a request which shall be subject to approval by the Committee. Delivery of Shares 
upon the vesting of Units is subject to the satisfaction of applicable withholding tax obligations.  

8.  No Shareholder Rights . The Units subject to this Award do not entitle you (or any permitted transferee) to any rights of a 
shareholder of the Company’s common stock. You will not have any of the rights of a shareholder of the Company in connection with 
the grant of Units subject to this Agreement unless and until Shares are issued to you upon settlement of the Units as provided in 
Section 6.  

9.  Discontinuance of Service . This Agreement does not give you a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and 
the Company or any such Affiliate may terminate your Service at any time and otherwise deal with you without regard to the effect it 
may have upon you under this Agreement.  

10.  Governing Plan Document . This Agreement and Award are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules 
and regulations which may, from time to time, be adopted and promulgated by the Committee pursuant to the Plan. If there is any 
conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.  

11.  Choice of Law . This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the state of Minnesota (without regard to its 
conflicts or choice of law principles).  

12.  Binding Effect . This Agreement will be binding in all respects on your heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the 
successors and assigns of the Company.  

13.  Notices . Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered to the 
party for whom it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other 
party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices or communications by you to the Company 
shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its office at 225 South Sixth Street, 9 th Floor, Minneapolis, MN 55402, fax 
612.977.7050, and all notices or communications by the Company to you may be given to you personally or may be mailed to you at 
the address indicated in the Company's records as your most recent mailing address.  

14.  Forfeiture Events . 

(1)  perform services for any Competitive Business as employee, consultant, contractor or otherwise; 

(2)  solicit or attempt to solicit any employee or independent contractor of the Company to cease working for the 
Company;  

(3)  use or disclose to any person any Confidential Information for any purpose; 



 
 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By signing the cover page of this Agreement or otherwise accepting this Award in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all the 
terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and in the Plan document.  

 
 

(4)  take any action that might divert any opportunity from the Company or any of its Affiliates, successors or assigns 
(the “Related Parties”) that is within the scope of the present or future operations or business of any Related Parties;  

(5)  contact, call upon or solicit any customer of the Company, or attempt to divert or take away from the Company the 
business of any of its customers;  

(6)  contact, call upon or solicit any prospective customer of the Company that you became aware of or were introduced 
to in the course of your duties for the Company, or otherwise divert or take away from the Company the business of 
any prospective customer of the Company; or  

(7)  engage in any activity that is harmful to the interests of the Company, including, without limitation, any conduct 
during the term of your Service that violates the Company’s codes of conduct or other policies.  

(b)  If the Company determines that you violated any provisions of Section 14(a) above during the Restricted Period, you agree 
that:  

(1)  any Units that have not vested as of the date of such determination shall be immediately forfeited; and 

(2)  you shall automatically forfeit any rights you may have with respect to the Units as of the date of such 
determination.  

(c)  The foregoing remedies set forth in Section 14(b) shall not be the Company’s exclusive remedies. The Company reserves all 
other rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity.  

(d)  The Company may exercise its right to provide notice of its determination and forfeiture of Units within ninety days after 
discovery of such an occurrence but in no event later than fifteen months after your termination of Service.  

(e)  For purposes of this Section 14, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

(1)  “Competitive Business” shall mean any person, corporation, not-for-profit organization, or other entity that 
provides, develops, sells, or markets on-line credit-granting educational products or services in any country in which 
the Company did business or had customers at any time during the last 12 months of your Service. In the case of an 
organization that provides, develops, sells, or markets on-line credit-granting educational products or services within 
or from a distinct, separate division or unit of the organization (the “On-Line Unit”) and also provides, develops, 
sells, or markets credit-granting educational products or services through other means within other distinct, separate 
divisions or units, the term “Competitive Business” shall be limited to the On-Line Unit, and shall not apply to the 
organization as a whole.  

(2)  “Confidential Information” means information proprietary to the Company and not generally known (including trade 
secret information) about the Company’s customers, products, services, personnel, pricing, sales strategy, 
technology, methods, processes, research, development, finances, systems, techniques, accounting, purchasing, and 
business strategies. All information disclosed to you or to which you obtain access, whether originated by you or by 
others, during the period of your Service, shall be presumed to be Confidential Information if it is treated by the 
Company as being Confidential Information or if you have a reasonable basis to believe it to be Confidential 
Information.  

15.  Incentive Compensation Recoupment . This Award is subject to the Company’s Policy Regarding Executive Compensation 
Recoupment, as adopted by the Board on February 23, 2011.  

16.  Section 409A of the Code . The provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in a manner intended to comply with 
Section 409A of the Code.  



 
 

Exhibit 10.4 
 

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  
 

Non-Statutory Stock Option Award Agreement  
Under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan  

 
Capella Education Company (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants to you, the 

Optionee named below, an Option to purchase the number of shares of the Company’s common stock shown in the table below at the specified 
exercise price per share. The terms and conditions of this Option Award are set forth in this Agreement, consisting of this cover page and the 
Option Terms and Conditions on the following pages, and in the Plan document, a copy of which has been provided to you. To the extent any 
capitalized term used in this Agreement is not defined, it shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Plan as it currently exists or as it may be 
amended in the future.  

 

 
By signing below or otherwise evidencing your acceptance of this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all 

of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and in the Plan document. You acknowledge that you have reviewed these documents 
and that they set forth the entire agreement between you and the Company regarding your rights and obligations in connection with this Option 
Award.  
 
OPTIONEE:      CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

 
 

By:________________________________  
Title:_______________________________  

 
 
 

Name of Optionee:**[_______________________]  

No. of Shares Covered:**[_______]  Grant Date:__________, 20__  

Exercise Price Per Share:$**[______]  Expiration Date:__________, 20__  

Vesting and Exercise Schedule:  

Dates  

Number of Shares as to Which  
Option Becomes Vested and Exercisable  
 
 
 
 



 
 

Capella Education Company  
2014 Equity Incentive Plan  

Non-Statutory Stock Option Award Agreement  
 

Option Terms and Conditions  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
(a)      cash (including check, bank draft or money order payable to the Company);  

 
 
 

1.  Non-Qualified Stock Option . This Option is not intended to be an “incentive stock option” within the meaning of Section 422 of the 
Code and will be interpreted accordingly.  

2.  Vesting and Exercisability of Option . 

(a)  Scheduled Vesting . This Option will vest and become exercisable as to the number of Shares and on the dates specified in 
the Vesting and Exercise Schedule on the cover page to this Agreement, so long as your Service to the Company and its 
Affiliates does not end. The Vesting and Exercise Schedule is cumulative, meaning that to the extent the Option has not 
already been exercised and has not expired, terminated or been cancelled, you or the person otherwise entitled to exercise the 
Option as provided in this Agreement may at any time purchase all or any portion of the Shares that may then be purchased 
under that Schedule.  

(b)  Accelerated or Continued Vesting . Vesting and exercisability of this Option (i) will be accelerated as provided in Section 6
(e) of the Plan if your Service terminates due to your death or Disability prior to the expiration of the Option; (ii) will 
continue as provided in Section 6(e) of the Plan if your Service terminates due to your Retirement prior to the expiration of 
the Option; and (iii) will or may be accelerated in connection with a Change of Control under the circumstances and to the 
extent described in Sections 12(b) and 12(c) of the Plan, or at the discretion of the Committee in accordance with Section 3
(b)(2) of the Plan.  

3.  Expiration . This Option will expire and will no longer be exercisable at 4:00 p.m. Central Time on the earliest of: 

(a)  the Expiration Date specified on the cover page of this Agreement; 

(b)  the last day of any applicable period specified in Section 6(e), Section 12(b) or Section 12(c) of the Plan following your 
termination of Service during which this Option may be exercised;  

(c)  the date (if any) fixed for termination or cancellation of this Option pursuant to Sections 12(b) or 12(c) of the Plan; 

(d)  the date of your termination of Service for Cause; or 

(e)  the date of any determination made by the Company pursuant to Section 16(b) of this Agreement. 

4.  Service Requirement . Except as otherwise provided in Section 3(b) of this Agreement, this Option may be exercised only while you 
continue to provide Service to the Company or any Affiliate, and only if you have continuously provided such Service since the Grant 
Date.  

5.  Exercise of Option . Subject to Section 4, the vested and exercisable portion of this Option may be exercised by delivering written or 
electronic notice of exercise to the Company at the principal executive office of the Company, to the attention of the Company’s 
Corporate Secretary or the party designated by such officer (which written or electronic notice will be in such form as may be 
provided by the Company and shall state the number of Shares to be purchased, the manner in which the exercise price will be paid 
and the manner in which the Shares to be acquired are to be delivered, and must be signed or otherwise authenticated by the person 
exercising this Option), or by such other means as the Committee may approve. If the person exercising this Option is not you, he/she 
also must submit appropriate proof of his/her right to exercise this Option.  

6.  Payment of Exercise Price . When you submit your notice of exercise, you must include payment of the exercise price of the Shares 
being purchased through one or a combination of the following methods:  



 
 

(b)      to the extent permitted by law, a broker-assisted cashless exercise in which you irrevocably instruct a broker 
to deliver proceeds of a sale of all or a portion of the Shares for which the Option is being exercised (or proceeds of a loan 
secured by such Shares) to the Company in payment of the purchase price of such Shares;  

 

 

 
However, if the Committee determines, in any given circumstance, that payment of the exercise price with Shares would 

have adverse accounting or other consequences for the Company, you will not be permitted to pay any portion of the exercise price in 
that manner.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

(c)  by delivery (either actually or by attestation) to the Company or its designated agent of unencumbered Shares having an 
aggregate Fair Market Value on the date of exercise equal to the purchase price of the Shares for which the Option is being 
exercised; or  

(d)  by directing the Company to withhold a number of Shares otherwise issuable to you upon such exercise having an aggregate 
Fair Market Value on the date of exercise equal to the purchase price of the Shares for which the Option is being exercised.  

7.  Withholding Taxes . You may not exercise this Option in whole or in part unless you make arrangements acceptable to the Company 
for payment of any federal, state, local or foreign withholding taxes that may be due as a result of the exercise of this Option. You 
hereby authorize the Company (or any Affiliate) to withhold from payroll or other amounts payable to you any sums required to 
satisfy such withholding tax obligations, and otherwise agree to satisfy such obligations in accordance with the provisions of Section 
14 of the Plan. If you wish to satisfy some or all of such withholding tax obligations by delivering Shares you already own or by 
having the Company retain a portion of the Shares being acquired upon exercise of the Option, you must make such a request which 
shall be subject to approval by the Committee. Delivery of Shares upon exercise of this Option is subject to the satisfaction of 
applicable withholding tax obligations.  

8.  Delivery of Shares . As soon as practicable after the Company receives the exercise notice and payment of the exercise price provided 
for above, and determines that all conditions to exercise, including Section 7 of this Agreement, have been satisfied, it will arrange for 
the issuance and delivery of the Shares being purchased. Delivery of the Shares shall be effected by the issuance of a stock certificate, 
by an appropriate entry in the stock register maintained by the Company’s transfer agent with a notice of issuance provided, or by the 
electronic delivery of the Shares to a designated brokerage account. The Company will pay any original issue or transfer taxes with 
respect to the issuance and delivery of the Shares to you, and all fees and expenses incurred by it in connection therewith. All Shares 
so issued will be fully paid and nonassessable. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Company will not be 
required to issue or deliver any Shares prior to the completion of such registration or other qualification of such Shares under any state 
or federal law, rule or regulation as the Company may determine to be necessary or desirable.  

9.  Transfer of Option . During your lifetime, only you (or your guardian or legal representative in the event of legal incapacity) may 
exercise this Option except in the case of a transfer described in the next sentence. You may not assign or transfer this Option other 
than (i) a transfer upon your death in accordance with your will, by the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to a beneficiary 
designation submitted in accordance with Section 6(d) of the Plan, (ii) pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order, or (iii) by gift 
to any “family member” (as defined in General Instruction A(5) to Form S-8 under the Securities Act of 1933) of yours. Following 
any such transfer, this Option shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were applicable to this Option 
immediately prior to its transfer and may be exercised by such permitted transferee as and to the extent that this Option has become 
exercisable and has not terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement.  

10.  No Shareholder Rights Before Exercise . Neither you nor any permitted transferee of this Option will have any of the rights of a 
shareholder of the Company with respect to any Shares subject to this Option unless and until Shares are issued and delivered to you 
upon exercise of the Option as provided in Section 8.  

11.  Discontinuance of Service . This Agreement does not give you a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and 
the Company or any such Affiliate may terminate your Service at any time and otherwise deal with you without regard to the effect it 
may have upon you under this Agreement.  

12.  Governing Plan Document . This Agreement and Option are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules 
and regulations which may, from time to time, be adopted and promulgated by the Committee pursuant to the Plan. If there is any 
conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.  



 
 
 

 

 

 
(a)      By accepting this Option, you agree that during the period during which you provide Service to the Company 

and its Affiliates, and for twelve months following the date such Service ends (the “Restricted Period”) for any reason 
whatsoever, you will not, directly or indirectly:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 
 

13.  Choice of Law . This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the state of Minnesota (without regard to its 
conflicts or choice of law principles).  

14.  Binding Effect . This Agreement will be binding in all respects on your heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the 
successors and assigns of the Company.  

15.  Notices . Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered to the 
party for whom it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other 
party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices or communications by you to the Company 
shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its office at 225 South Sixth Street, 9 th Floor, Minneapolis, MN 55402, fax 
612.977.7050, and all notices or communications by the Company to you may be given to you personally or may be mailed to you at 
the address indicated in the Company's records as your most recent mailing address.  

16.  Forfeiture Events . 

(1)  perform services for any Competitive Business as employee, consultant, contractor or otherwise; 

(2)  solicit or attempt to solicit any employee or independent contractor of the Company to cease working for the 
Company;  

(3)  use or disclose to any person any Confidential Information for any purpose; 

(4)  take any action that might divert any opportunity from the Company or any of its Affiliates, successors or assigns 
(the “Related Parties”) that is within the scope of the present or future operations or business of any Related Parties;  

(5)  contact, call upon or solicit any customer of the Company, or attempt to divert or take away from the Company the 
business of any of its customers;  

(6)  contact, call upon or solicit any prospective customer of the Company that you became aware of or were introduced 
to in the course of your duties for the Company, or otherwise divert or take away from the Company the business of 
any prospective customer of the Company; or  

(7)  engage in any activity that is harmful to the interests of the Company, including, without limitation, any conduct 
during the term of your Service that violates the Company’s codes of conduct or other policies.  

(b)  If the Company determines that you violated any provisions of Section 16(a) above during the Restricted Period, you agree 
that:  

(1)  any portion of the Option (whether or not vested) that has not been exercised as of the date of such determination 
shall be immediately forfeited;  

(2)  you shall automatically forfeit any rights you may have with respect to the Option as of the date of such 
determination; and  

(3)  if you exercised all or any part of the Option within the six-month period immediately preceding termination of your 
Service (or following the date of any such violation), upon the Company’s demand, you shall immediately deliver to 
it Shares with a Fair Market Value (determined on the date of such demand) equal to the gain realized by you upon 
such exercise.  

(c)  The foregoing remedies set forth in Section 16(b) shall not be the Company’s exclusive remedies. The Company reserves all 
other rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity.  



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

By signing the cover page of this Agreement or otherwise accepting this Award in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all the 
terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and in the Plan document.  

 
 
 

(d)  The Company may exercise its right to demand forfeiture within ninety days after discovery of such an occurrence but in no 
event later than fifteen months after your termination of Service.  

(e)  For purposes of this Section 16, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

(1)  “Competitive Business” shall mean any person, corporation, not-for-profit organization, or other entity that 
provides, develops, sells, or markets on-line credit-granting educational products or services in any country in which 
the Company did business or had customers at any time during the last 12 months of your Service. In the case of an 
organization that provides, develops, sells, or markets on-line credit-granting educational products or services within 
or from a distinct, separate division or unit of the organization (the “On-Line Unit”) and also provides, develops, 
sells, or markets credit-granting educational products or services through other means within other distinct, separate 
divisions or units, the term “Competitive Business” shall be limited to the On-Line Unit, and shall not apply to the 
organization as a whole.  

(2)  “Confidential Information” means information proprietary to the Company and not generally known (including trade 
secret information) about the Company’s customers, products, services, personnel, pricing, sales strategy, 
technology, methods, processes, research, development, finances, systems, techniques, accounting, purchasing, and 
business strategies. All information disclosed to you or to which you obtain access, whether originated by you or by 
others, during the period of your Service, shall be presumed to be Confidential Information if it is treated by the 
Company as being Confidential Information or if you have a reasonable basis to believe it to be Confidential 
Information.  

17.  Incentive Compensation Recoupment . This Award is subject to the Company’s Policy Regarding Executive Compensation 
Recoupment, as adopted by the Board on February 23, 2011.  



 
 

Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 302 OF  

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

I, J. Kevin Gilligan, certify that:  

 

 

Date: July 29, 2014  
   

 
 

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Capella Education Company; 

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report;  

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;  

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report 
is being prepared;  

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles;  

c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and  

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during 
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that 
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting; and  

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):  

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and  

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.  

/s/ J. Kevin Gilligan  
    

J. Kevin Gilligan     

Chief Executive Officer     



 
 

Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 302 OF  

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

I, Steven L. Polacek, certify that:  

 

Date: July 29, 2014  
   

 
 

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Capella Education Company; 

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;  

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report;  

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and  

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):  

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and  

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.  

/s/ Steven L. Polacek  
    

Steven L. Polacek     

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer     



 
 

Exhibit 32.1 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer  
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350  

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)  

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Capella Education Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, J. Kevin Gilligan, Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

   

 
This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed to be 

incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the 
Company specifically incorporates it by reference.  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the 
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  
 

 

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.  

/s/ J. Kevin Gilligan  
    

J. Kevin Gilligan     

Chief Executive Officer     

July 29, 2014     



 
 

Exhibit 32.2 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer  
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350  

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)  

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Capella Education Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Steven L. Polacek, Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

   

 
This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed to be 

incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the 
Company specifically incorporates it by reference.  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the 
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  
 

 

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.  

/s/ Steven L. Polacek  
    

Steven L. Polacek     

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer     

July 29, 2014     


